#### CITY OF DETROIT

BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

RE: Regular Meeting

/

Page 1 - 42

Proceedings held in the above-entitled matter Taken at 1301 Third Street Detroit, Michigan, Commencing at 3:00 p.m., Thursday, July 21, 2016, Before Melinda R. Womack, CSR3611.

APPEARANCES:

WILLIE E. BELL - Chairperson

LISA CARTER - District 6 REGINALD CRAWFORD - District 3 DERRICK SANDERS - Appointed ELIZABETH BROOKS - Appointed

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Gregory Hicks - Secretary to the Board Ms. Pamela Davis-Drake, Chief Investigator Ms. Linda Bernard, attorney to the Board. Mr. Robert Brown, Administrative Assistant Sergeant Alan Quinn, Recorder



Page 2

1 Detroit, Michigan 2 Thursday, July 21, 2016 3 About 3:00 p.m. CHAIRMAN BELL: Good afternoon. Welcome to 4 5 the weekly afternoon meeting at 3:00 of the Board of Police Commission. Hi. I'm your Chair, Willie Bell, 6 7 from District 4. At this time we're going to have 8 invocation by our own Reverend Pamela Davis-Drake, the 9 Chief Investigator. 10 (Invocation given) 11 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. Roll call. Elizabeth Brooks, Ms. Brooks 12 13 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Present. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Willie Burton? 14 15 Lisa Carter? Reginald Crawford? COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Present. 16 17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Eva Dewaelsche excused. 18 Conrad Mallett? Ricard Moore, excused. Derrick 19 Sanders? 20 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Here. 21 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: You're not excused 2.2 you are here. We'll note you're here. Richard Shelby is excused and Bishop Edgar Vann is excused. Mr. 23 24 Secretary, I assume that we do not have a quorum. 25 SECRETARY HICKS: That's correct.

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO ANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you, sir. I'm 2 going to ask -- before we do that, I'm going to ask 3 Deputy Chief David LeValley, thank you for your attendance on behalf of the Chief. If you want to 4 5 introduce any others at this time, this would be the 6 appropriate introduction time. If not, we can a little 7 bit later. 8 D.C. LeVALLEY: Thank you. Chief Craig is at 9 a retreat for all the mayor's appointees that he's

having today so he's in training. Sitting in for the
Chief today also present from the Department Lieutenant
Johnson from Chief Staff and Sergeant Stinson from
downtown services. I don't think I missed anybody
else. Thank you.

15 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. Good to see 16 you. At this time, I'm going to ask our Secretary to 17 the Board, Mr. Gregory Hicks, I'm introducing him and 18 he's going to go forth with any other introduction of 19 the staff.

20 SECRETARY HICKS: Thank you. I should add 21 that Commissioner Carter just joined us.

22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Good afternoon.
 23 SECRETARY HICKS: We have with us this
 24 evening Chief Investigator Pam Drake, who's here, of
 25 course. Linda Bernard our attorney to the Board.



1 Robert Brown, who's Administrative Assistant, and Mr. 2 Nelson, the supervising investigator. We also have 3 Mindy Womack, who is the court reporter today and we also have Gail Oxendine, who is excused for the day. 4 5 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. And 6 recorders today, sir if you would introduce them. SECRETARY HICKS: Yes. Mindy Womack is the 7 8 court reporter. 9 CHAIRMAN BELL: Oh, got. Did I hear it the 10 first time? Media Service did we miss them? SECRETARY HICKS: Yes, we did. Okay. 11 We 12 have two able people on the part of media services who 13 are here, one manning the camera and one in the back of 14 the control room. 15 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. And we still 16 are. 17 SECRETARY HICKS: Awaiting a quorum. 18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Do not have a quorum at this 19 time. Okay. We're going to move. 20 SECRETARY HICKS: Commissioner you can 21 proceed with your agenda. 2.2 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir. 23 SECRETARY HICKS: When we get to things that 24 require a vote, a decision making item, then we would 25 be concerned with our quorum.



7/21	/20	16
------	-----	----

1	CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. We'll continue on.
2	And since we do not have a quorum for the agenda I just
3	move on in terms of the formality of it all.
4	My report, I'm going to reserve some
5	comments. I have to gather my thoughts and it's been
6	so hot outside I haven't had a chance to gather myself
7	make an adjustment from inside the building here.
8	Subcommittee.
9	SECRETARY HICKS: I'm sorry.
10	CHAIRMAN HICKS: Subcommittee.
11	SECRETARY HICKS: Mr. Chair, you have in the
12	packet pursuant to discussions with you and the
13	appointments that you had made to the subcommittee.
14	What's in the package is a complete listing of all of
15	the subcommittees. I would note that the added one in
16	this particular rendition is the one that you created
17	as a result of the great work on the part of
18	Commissioner Brooks meeting and that was police
19	recruiting. Other than that, the subcommittees are all
20	the same. We have standing and ad-hoc committees, and
21	to the right of the paper you'll have in bold the
22	chairpersons of the committee and membership.
23	CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. I appreciate
24	that in terms of rolling it out and I appreciate
25	Commissioner Brooks for volunteering to chair that

committee last week and we're looking forward to more interaction in terms of something that is dear to our heart in terms of recruiting efforts with the population in the City of Detroit and Metropolitan Detroit and nationally. Do you want to share anything with us at this time Commissioner Brooks?

COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I don't need to talk 7 8 about all of the crime and all the shooting that's 9 going on, but it is going to be hard to recruit young 10 men and women. So we're going to need every able body 11 we can. All community centers even going to go into southwest. We have some other places to go, but I'm 12 13 calling on all the citizens to help us to do this. But 14 because of what's going on now with police shootings, 15 it's getting a little hard, so we need as many people 16 as we possibly can. I still have to get with the My 17 Brother's Keeper, that's coming up, and I have 18 something else that's coming up, but now that he is 19 working with me, I feel that the two of us together can 20 do a great job. But I'm calling on all of you out 21 again that if you know of any organization, any church, 2.2 any community center that we can go into with our police lieutenant to recruit young people, I would 23 24 appreciate it. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. That includes



25

1 Slow Rollers too, if you want to roll with the police 2 department, we are aggressively recruiting. And 3 there's no age discrimination and we do have a bike 4 patrol, as you well know. So we do have motorized 5 patrol so you don't have to be slow with us, you can 6 move forward with a rapid pace. We'll entertain a 7 little bit later on. We just want to acknowledge that 8 you're present. And I assume the next item on the 9 agenda will we Deputy Chief LeValley report.

10 D.C. LeVALLEY: Yes, sir. Thank you. I will 11 start with the crime reports as of this morning, 158 12 homicides. That's even with last year. Nonfatal 13 shootings we're at 508. Last year we were at 562. 14 We're down 54, or 10%. Robberies at 1,378. Last year 15 this dates we were at 1,640. We're down 262 or 16% and 16 carjackings, which are included in that robbery number, we're at 161. Last year we were at 252. We're down 91 17 18 or 36% this year. Our average priority one response 19 time last week was 16.7 and we handled last week 1,701 20 priority one calls, 5,567 total calls for service. That's it for that. 21

I know we had last night, probably saw in the news, we had some protesters that were chaining themselves to the front door of the 3rd precinct. We had our chief duty officer respond to the location,

> ANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

Page 7

Page 8

1 talked to the organizer of the group. You know, 2 indicated to that person that we certainly support 3 everybody's right to protest and which has been our 4 message all along, we support everybody's First 5 Amendment right, free speech, but blockading the 6 entrance to the police station and chaining themselves 7 wasn't the appropriate location or venue to do that. 8 So after about an hour we had the chains cut off and 9 they were arrested and charged with disorderly conduct. 10 So it ended without any physical encounters. There was 11 no force used. We recorded the entire incident or the 12 entire cutting of the chains and arresting of the 13 individuals.

One of the issues too is that they chained themselves to the building without the keys to the locks available, which I don't know if that was their tactic for us not to remove the locks but we had tools to cut them. It's not that big of an issue for us.

19CHAIRMAN BELL: You didn't expect them to20give you the keys, did you?

21 D.C. LeVALLEY: Well, no, but what A.C. 22 Dolunt pointed out to them, if the building catches on 23 fire, you might have a problem, because you're stuck to 24 the building, we're not. But either way, it ended 25 peacefully. And again, we support everybody's right to



protest, everybody has a right to express themselves and their First Amendment rights. And I think we go out of our way to accommodate groups to do that, but that wasn't the right way to do it so they ended up in jail for the night. And they may have wanted to go to jail.

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: There's no right way to 8 demonstrate, but you exercised law and order, peace and 9 tranquility, from what I can see. What I gather you 10 responded appropriately and they made their point and 11 you made your point and people got arrested and civil 12 disobedience is America.

13 D.C. LeVALLEY: I agree.

14 So and then also Tuesday, you know, we had a 15 funeral here -- or not here in Detroit, but in Redford 16 Township for one of the Dallas Police Officers who grew 17 up in this area. So a lot of Detroit police officers 18 and officers in the region, I think there were over a 19 thousand police in attendance for that funeral, and the 20 Dallas Chief was here as. But that went well, and I 21 know the Chief presented a gift to the department, a statue that they're taking back. That should be it for 2.2 23 now.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Any comments? Questions orconcerns in reference to the Deputy Chief's report?



7/	21	/2	01	6
----	----	----	----	---

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir. Through 2 the Chair. Yes, sir, Chief. First and foremost, I 3 want to commend the protesters or activists for their nonviolent act of civil disobedience. 4 5 Also too I want to commend the Department and 6 particularly Commander Barren who I believe was on the scene for the way the Department handled the actual 7 8 protest out there. So I think there were six arrests 9 or something like that. 10 D.C. LeVALLEY: Correct. 11 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: And there wasn't any 12 forced used, etcetera. So I just want to make sure 13 that Commander Barren gets that note that I really 14 appreciate the way it was handled and that there wasn't 15 any real incident between the Detroit Police and the 16 protesters or activists. 17 Also too, the issue of chaining themselves up 18 and having locks and not having a key and I guess 19 ultimately they were locked up. So thank you, sir. 20 D.C. LeVALLEY: I will definitely relay the message to Commander Barren. He oversees most events 21 2.2 that we have, most protests that we have and always does an excellent job. He's very patient, very forward 23 24 thinking about where we're placing certain equipment, 25 about what message is sent to have certain equipment

Page 11

1 that we hope we don't have to use, but rather than 2 putting that stuff on the front lines, Commander 3 Barron's very conscientious about how he manages those 4 events, but I'll let him know. Thank you. 5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I just might add, too 6 that recently a couple weeks ago there was a large protest, about ten thousand activists, the protestors 7 8 and I believe there were only ten arrests in that 9 particular incident and, of course, the mayor had had 10 to step into the middle of that because at one point it 11 was about to become kind of disruptive so he stepped in 12 and quelled that. He was the mayor of the City of 13 Atlanta. So I guess one might say Detroit is, you 14 know, I mean wasn't ten thousand but the fact is we 15 didn't have any issues so I appreciate that. Thank 16 you, sir. 17 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Through the Chair. 18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir. 19 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: I'd like to ask a 20 question. Why is the response time is going longer and longer? I noticed that it's 16 minutes now. Before we 21 2.2 had it down to 11 minutes. And the reason I ask that question is because this morning about 6:30 when I got 23 24 up I heard some noise when I looked out the window and 25 right across the street from me I see somebody taking

7/	21	/2	01	6
----	----	----	----	---

this man's roof off that was not at home. I made a phone call. By the time the officers get there, roof was gone. It took them longer than 16 minutes to take the roof off.

Correct. So that roof. 5 D.C. LeVALLEY: 6 Couple issues. That roof coming off is not a priority 7 one. Priority ones are assaultive crimes in progress 8 and including domestic robberies. All the part one 9 crimes fall into that category. So we have multiple 10 priority lists, priority one, two and three and 11 priority four, actually. The reason that the time has 12 again going up I don't know about 11 minutes, but our 13 quickest week for the last couple years has been about 14 14.3 minutes and those are during low volume weeks of 15 the year. So basically right now all of the increase 16 that we've seen in our priority one response time has 17 been in a cue time. So cue is the time when the call's 18 already been made, the dispatcher is trying to identify 19 an available unit to respond to that call.

20 So the volume that we have right now priority 21 one runs and other runs versus the number of people 22 that we have available on the street at any given time 23 to answer those runs causes that time to increase. So 24 we always see a cycle for the last several years of as 25 we go into the warmer weather we can see the crime

Page 13

1	trend	go ı	up and	then	down	as	we	get	back	int	co fal	Ll
2	time.	So	that's	s what	: has	caı	isec	l tha	at to	go	from	14.3
3	minute	s to	o 16.7	•								

The priority two and other runs that response 4 time for those is higher, so we're just talking about 5 6 the priority one runs in this time. And that is an 7 average of all of the 1,700 runs last week. So if we 8 look at them individually by run type that are in 9 priority ones, I'm sure you would see that, I don't 10 know what the right word is, maybe critical priority 11 one runs or shooting, carjacking that the response time for those is much lower than some of the other priority 12 13 one runs. The priority time, so the response time is 14 higher but it causes the average to be 16.7.

15 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: How do I put this? Is 16 there to get time better by trying to bring more 17 officers on?

18 D.C. LeVALLEY: Absolutely. So we look at 19 the times. Right now we have a -- last week the intake 20 time is 1.6 minutes. So that's the average time that 21 it takes from the time a 911 operator answers the call 22 to the time that they've created the ticket, figured out what the problem is, where the problem is at and 23 24 send it to dispatch. So that average takes 1.6 25 minutes.

1 Our travel time last week is 10.3. That --2 there's a couple things that go into that. So that's 3 from the time the officer gets dispatched to the run to 4 the time they arrive on scene, their drive time. So if 5 we have more units on the street, there's a greater 6 likelihood that the unit that we're going to send is closer to the run than having to dispatch somebody 7 8 that's farther away. So travel time could be increased 9 by that.

10 It could also be increased by supervisory 11 oversight. We made a big push in the last two years, 12 about two years ago for priority one response time to 13 drive that down. When we did that, one of the things 14 that we did was that stopped the clock where we sent 15 that message out to all the officers and the 16 supervisors. We equipped all the supervisors with the 17 ability to look at GPS on the cars to do audits to make 18 sure that when they're receiving priority one that 19 they're driving straight to the run and not make any 20 unnecessary stops. So that time we cut a couple 21 minutes off of that. Like I said, it's at 10.3 now. 2.2 Adding more units to the street, encouraging officers to continue to go straight to the run without any 23 24 unnecessary stops or delays when it's a priority one 25 run, we could drive a little bit of time of that off

Page 15

1 that, probably a minute or so.

2 And the biggest areas cue time which last 3 week was 3.8 minutes. So for every priority one run 4 that comes in when the dispatcher sees it, they have to 5 start pulling units to find out what they're on, who's 6 clearing up, who they can take and send to that 7 priority one run. Sometimes we pull a priority three 8 run away when a priority one pops up and send them to 9 the priority one. So that is the biggest area we're 10 adding officers when we get to full staffing that we 11 would see the biggest decrease in that cue time, because once it shows up on the dispatcher's screen, if 12 13 we have more units out there, there's more people to 14 redirect to a priority one, greater likelihood they're 15 closer to the run if there's a lot of units spread out 16 throughout the city.

There's definitely opportunity for
improvement and a lot of it is connected to staffing
level.

20 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Ms. Brooks, we got to 21 get more people out here.

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: That's been age old for quite 23 some time personnel-wise. Thank you. Any other 24 questions? Concerns? I see Commissioner Willie 25 Burton, District 5, is joining us. Let the record

Page 16

1 reflect that Commissioner Burton is not joining us. He 2 has to be excused due to personal circumstances. We're 3 going to move forward.

The next item of business before we get to 4 5 Mr. Hicks, Secretary of the Board, I'm going to ask 6 Chief Investigator Pam Davis-Drake to come to the mic since we're on the subject matter talking about 7 8 recruiting. I want her to share our interaction with 9 the Academy class just last week on Tuesday, or this 10 work Tuesday morning at 9:00 and she is a significant part of that effort to present ourself to the class. 11 12 So she has some really, you know, past experience such 13 and such. And so if you would share your interaction, 14 our interaction with the class, which we did also with lieutenant, sergeant-lieutenants a week ago. 15 Thank 16 you.

17 C.I. DRAKE: I think I already reported out18 on the sergeant-lieutenant meeting.

19 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, you did.

20 C.I. DRAKE: We did have the opportunity you 21 and I, Commissioner Bell, to speak to the class 22 actually of 36, which is the largest class I think 23 we've ever spoken to, a newer class, only been there 24 two months, but they were very eager to get started and 25 very forthcoming with information. They were very

Page 17

participative and very diverse. It was a wonderfully 1 2 diverse class both I think it was like six females, a 3 lot of different ethnicities there so it was very very 4 good to see that. Several were City of Detroit 5 residents so it was very good to see that. 6 Again, they were receptive. The information that was presented they seemed to be very receptive. 7 8 They were very knowledgeable and they participated very 9 well. So very good class. Ill was Sergeant Duncan's 10 class, another wonderful class from the academy that we 11 had an opportunity to speak with. I do hope that they all make it because it was a wonderful class. I'm sure 12 13 that maybe a few will fall out, but I'm rooting for the 14 entire team. It was a great class of 36 so and the

15 largest again that we've ever spoken to.

16 CHAIRMAN BELL: Any questions or concerns of 17 Chief Investigator Drake? I want to say that she not 18 only interacts, you know, but at the end there was a 19 little Q and A, a guiz and make sure they understand 20 the message, and I thought that was really, see if they 21 really was in tune to the issues and did an excellent 2.2 job. So that's what you're looking for in terms of that type of class. And we were impressed with that 23 24 type of engagement. I just want to make sure that we're, you know, engaging at the academy level they get 25

1 exposed to the Board of Police Commissioner and OCI 2 directly, you know. They won't get the hearsay, they 3 get it direct.

But we're still waiting on, Deputy Chief 4 5 LeValley, would you follow up? We requested a couple 6 weeks ago, maybe three weeks ago, the curriculum for 7 the Academy class. We still would like for the Board to take an entire look at the curriculum in terms of 8 9 exactly what has been taught in the Academy because I 10 know Crawford was there years ago. It can't be the 11 same curriculum. So there's so much going on we should 12 have some working knowledge as to what's been shared in 13 the academy class, you know, so I just think that we 14 need to do a follow-up on that because he attended two 15 class -- I'm mean not just DPD but Atlanta PD and you 16 didn't have to go through a class in the Sheriff's 17 Department, right?

18 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir, we did.
19 But pardon me, Mr. Chair. You said I was there years
20 ago. I think you preceded me by a decade or two.
21 CHAIRMAN BELL: By a couple years. Me and

21 confidence bill. By a couple years.
22 the Chair only a couple years.

23 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: More than a couple24 years.

25

CHAIRMAN BELL: They have so much on their



7/2	1/2	016
-----	-----	-----

1 plate it was a great interaction to see what's 2 presented on graduation day but you get an idea in 3 early on in terms make up of the class. We wish them 4 the best. Thank you. 5 C.I. DRAKE: Just to add to what you're 6 saying about knowing what the curriculum is, it 7 actually would help us because it would be if we 8 already know what they're exposed to when we give our 9 presentation we can piggyback off of all of the things 10 that you said so we would love to have that. 11 CHAIRMAN BELL: Good point. 12 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Through the Chair? 13 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes. 14 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: I'd like to thank you, 15 Pamela Drake, Chief Investigator, for doing such an 16 excellent job. She's always there for us, always there 17 to answer questions, call us, e-mail us. She's doing 18 an excellent job and I like to commend you for that. 19 C.I. DRAKE: Thank you, sir. I appreciate 20 it. 21 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: We do appreciate you. 2.2 C.I. DRAKE: Thank you. 23 CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioner Crawford? 24 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir. Through 25 the Chair. This is a different subject. I just want



7/:	21/	20	16
-----	-----	----	----

to thank you and Captain Chambers, Internal Affairs and 1 2 Commander Simms. You received my packet on Officer 3 Barry. Thank you very much for the information that 4 was requested. 5 C.I. DRAKE: You're quite welcome. COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Just like I said, case 6 in point. 7 8 C.I. DRAKE: It's called doing my job, sir. 9 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair. 10 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes. 11 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I have one question for 12 Chief Investigator Drake. Do we have an update what's 13 going on with the DBA? I wasn't here last week so I don't know if it was talked about at all. 14 15 C.I. DRAKE: The contract, as you know, 16 former Madam Chair, was signed last, oh, about a month 17 ago and it has been moved through the process. Right now it is going through the different units or 18 19 departments within the City. It's got to go through 20 purchasing is the last one, but it has to go through a 21 number, I think four all together. Budget, finance. 2.2 It has to go through the law department, corporation 23 counsel and then the final is purchasing. I know it is 24 on that track. I just made a call earlier today. Ι 25 have not received a return call just yet from DBA to

Page 21

1 find out where we are in the process. They were trying 2 to get it in by today's meeting or tomorrow's meeting, 3 the Board Meeting -- the City Council meeting, I'm 4 sorry. That is tomorrow. I doubt they're going to be 5 able to do that but there is a subsequent meeting. 6 It's going to be held on the 25th so they're trying to push it. If it gets to purchasing on time and 7 8 purchasing is able to get it on the agenda for the 9 council meeting on the 25th, then it should be approved 10 if all goes well. So that's the latest update. 11 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you. C.I. DRAKE: You're welcome. 12 13 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. Mr. Hicks. 14 SECRETARY HICKS: Commissioner, beyond which 15 I said at the top of the meeting, I have no additional 16 items to share with the Board. 17 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. Appreciate 18 that. 19 Under the new business. Commissioner Crawford. Yes, ma'am. 20 21 MS. BERNARD: Thank you, Commissioners, for 2.2 allowing me to announce some new business that I just heard about, and it is something that I think all of 23 24 you will be delighted to hear. It is a Pamela 25 Davis-Drake's birthday today and I knew you would like

Page 22

1 to know that. That's the new business. 2 CHAIRMAN BELL: We would sing happy birthday. 3 That's a copyright issue. I think they resolved that. We can all say happy birthday. Many many blessings to 4 5 you and your family. 6 C.I. DRAKE: Thank you. 7 MR. HICKS: I'll give you the Barry White. 8 Happy birthday. 9 CHAIRMAN BELL: On the new business you have, 10 I assume, a copy of a promotion, DPD promotion and 11 appointment ceremony that's going to take place on July 12 the 29th. That would be on a Friday at Second Ebenezer 13 Church. Bishop Vann is the church where he's the senior pastor and the notification should say 10:00. 14 15 You have this. All right. Okay. 16 Deputy Chief LeValley. Promotion and 17 appointment ceremony. I see promotion but 18 appointments. 19 D.C. LeVALLEY: Yes. The command officers 20 that were appointed, well, it's been a couple months 21 now. They never had a formal ceremony for the family. 2.2 CHAIRMAN BELL: Do they need one? 23 D.C. LeVALLEY: It's nice. 24 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Absolutely do. 25 D.C. LeVALLEY: They absolutely do.

Page 23

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. So be it. Okav. 2 Any other new business that we might have as 3 we move forward? Old business. We had talked about it for the last I guess two or three meetings, Slow 4 5 Rollers, and we have their chair or president of the Slow Rollers here this afternoon. 6 7 MR. HALL: Yes, sir. 8 CHAIRMAN BELL: We would like to give you the 9 opportunity since it's been a huge issue. Where's your 10 bike? 11 MR. HALL: Outside locked up. 12 CHAIRMAN BELL: I hope it's changed. 13 MR. HALL: It's changed. It is chained. CHAIRMAN BELL: If you would identify 14 15 yourself and we can take two or three minutes and then 16 from there we go to some questions or concerns that we 17 might have. Thank you. 18 MR. HALL: Yes, sir. My name is Jason Hall. 19 I'm the cofounder of Slow Roll Detroit. I'm also the 20 president of Detroit Bike City, Inc. Thank you 21 everybody for giving me the opportunity to speak 2.2 because it's important for me to take a couple seconds 23 to actually explain because I think it's a lot of 24 people think it's just a ride where people come 25 together and we just ride bikes, but it actually is a

HANSON RENAISSANCE

Page 24

lot bigger than that, okay? It's a weekly bike ride 1 2 where people come from all over the city, all over the 3 state, all over the world to come here and ride in 4 Detroit, the City of Detroit in its true beauty and 5 essence. They come together every week. We've never 6 had a violent issue. We've never had a problem. We've evolved through time because it's grown through time as 7 8 we've all seen. And through that evolution, we are 9 partnered up with the Detroit Police Department. We do 10 have police bikes. We have motorcycles and cars so we 11 do work very hard to alleviate the stress.

12 I'd also like to mention in this time we keep 13 talking about protest. We bring together a lot of 14 people and no one has a problem ever. In this climate, 15 in this world, people, when they come together, they 16 might want to act out. That never happens here. You 17 have people who come here and they say I've had my life 18 changed. Now, I'm getting nervous because when I talk 19 about it, I get emotional because it's my child.

20 So yes, I'd love to address any issues, but 21 I'd also like to talk about, like I said, the good 22 things we do. We just collected 600 backpacks and 23 their campaign have going on partnered up with 24 Gleaners, partnered up with Focus Hope and we bring a 25 lot of great energy to the City, not only great energy

7/21	/2016	5
------	-------	---

1 but we can also focus those people to spending dollars 2 in the city at our restaurants and actually moving to 3 the City. CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioners? 4 5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir, through the 6 Chair. And yes, sir. And thank you for coming for us. The ride is on Mondays. 7 MR. HALL: Correct. 8 9 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: The time you stated. 10 MR. HALL: Monday nights at 7:30. 11 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: 7:30 to what time? 12 MR. HALL: Roughly 9:00. We usually meet at 13 a place, we move it around the city because we, once 14 again, want to slow it off and work with Rosedale Park, 15 Chandler Park. We're working with a lot of different 16 places so we try to move it around, but we meet around 17 5:30. We keep every everybody contained in that area. 18 We take off on the road at 7:30 and we try to end 19 roughly 9, 9:30. 20 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I also noticed it has 21 really expanded over the last couple years from 2.2 hundreds to thousands. 23 MR. HALL: At times it can, it can hit 24 numbers of that. We work very hard to get good numbers 25 but, you know, it's a bike ride that's free for

NAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313-567-8100

Page 26 1 everybody so people tend to show up and that's what we 2 want them to do. But yeah, that's part of, like I 3 said, our evolution, we're never complacent in that once numbers started to grow, that's when we started to 4 5 grow as we speak. Like I said, our partnership with 6 the Detroit Police Department, we added more police as we need and as we can. I'm sure Sergeant Stinson can 7 8 help you out and answer any questions you have on that. 9 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: And also a part of 10 this evolution now, police officers are employed as part of the secondary employment. 11 MR. HALL: Correct. 12 13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: How many officers do 14 you have that are employed by secondary employment by Slow Roll? 15 16 MR. HALL: I can address that, sir. 17 SERGEANT STINSON: If you don't mind, I can 18 address that. Good afternoon, Board. Sergeant Jenae 19 Stinson, Detroit Police downtown services. We've had a 20 great collaboration with Slow Roll and what I've seen 21 start out as a community involvement, ambassadorship, 2.2 we go out and also engage the community with Slow Roll. It is a secondary employment, but they do reimburse for 23 services. 24 25

The number of officers depends on the length



of the route. It changes from week to week. Once Mr. Hall submits the route to us, we actually go out and ride the route, see what issues we may have on the route, if it's going to impact any freeway ramps and that type of thing. We either change the route or make some provisions as a turn here or turn there based on some issues that we may encounter.

8 But as you stated, it's been a great diverse group that come together. I've actually worked with 9 10 Mr. Hall when they were featured on HBO specials and 11 Apple commercials, so their brand has evolved. It has 12 morphed into something that we know we have to address. 13 But as we state to the officers in the beginning of the 14 rides, we engage the community as well so they know 15 that the services aren't pulled from their 16 neighborhood. So that's one of the things that we do 17 with them. And as you stated with recruiting, maybe we 18 can get recruiting to come out to our next Slow Roll 19 locations and pass out some interest cards.

20 So again, it's a great, diverse group and we 21 work with them every week to ensure that the impact is 22 minimum on the community that they're actually riding 23 in. Any other questions?

24 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I have a question. I25 know in past there were questions from the



7/2	1/2	016
-----	-----	-----

1 Commissioners regarding emergency response like EMS, 2 things like that through the neighborhoods. Has that issue been addressed? 3 SERGEANT STINSON: Yes, ma'am. It's Slow 4 5 So if we encounter, say, a bus, we can stop the Roll. 6 riders, allow the bus to continue on, or if there's 7 emergency vehicles who need to get through, we stop the 8 riders and allow emergency access or any other vehicles 9 that may need to cross the route. 10 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Are residents able to 11 get across a street, anything like that? Cars? 12 SERGEANT STINSON: Yes, ma'am. 13 COMMISSIONER CARTER: It doesn't impede traffic? 14 15 SERGEANT STINSON: No, ma'am. 16 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Mr. Chairman. I think

it's a wonderful thing for the Slow Rollers. It gives 17 18 an opportunity for other people to see Detroit as it 19 really is. I don't think it's the Slow Rollers. There 20 are zillions of bicycle clubs going on there. My 21 church just started one a month ago, so there are all 2.2 kinds of bicycle clubs going on and I think those are the ones that are causing the problems with the traffic 23 24 because they don't have all the information that you're 25 giving out. So I don't know what could be done about

> AISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313-567-8100

Page 29

that because personally you should be able to start your own bicycle club. But I don't think it's the Slow Rollers, after being out and being on the River Walk, there might be 15, 20 bikes on the River Walk that you can't walk.

6 SERGEANT STINSON: I agree. And public safety is paramount for us. You know, we do want to 7 8 ensure that because it has morphed into 100 bikes in 9 the beginning to maybe 600, 7000, depending on the 10 weather, depending on the route. We want to ensure that everyone is safe, you know, the bike, because 11 12 they're going to show up. We even tried to put a cap 13 on the number of participants, but then they'll call 14 their friends and they just join up anyway. So there's no way we can actually control it. We can only react 15 16 to whatever we have come and prepare for the numbers. 17 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

18 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the chair. I 19 think Slow Roll is great. I think it's great for the 20 city. It's larger than any bike club. In complaints 21 from the citizens was oftentimes -- well, sometimes 2.2 we've had citizens come before us and their complaint was one, the emergency issue of getting in and out. 23 24 And also too, just being stopped in an intersection and trying to get home because to them, Slow Roll -- and 25

> HANSON RENAISSANCE 313-567-8100

Page 30

not that they were so much opposed to Slow Roll, but
Slow Roll, they probably support it or some of them do
support it, but the issues is for them sitting there
for 20 minutes or so and 20 minutes to them can perhaps
seem like an hour we know perhaps how sometimes it is.
To them it was No Roll. Slow Roll is No Roll because
they have to sit there.

8 I do understand it. I mean years ago I used 9 to work different events, particularly the Marathon and 10 stuff like that and even the fireworks. I always tell t he story about fireworks with people, officers used 11 12 to send people around the corner, they live here on the 13 condo and they kept sending them around the corner and 14 try to move traffic and, you know, the particular 15 traffic pattern after some event. So that was my main concern was just that people able to get in and out 16 17 their homes or their community and particularly the 18 emergency vehicles if there's some sort of emergency.

SERGEANT STINSON: Yes, sir. We will address
 that.

21 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: We haven't had that 22 many complaints. Oftentimes they come in may want to 23 address us about it, but it hasn't been a lot of 24 complaints considering the magnitude of Slow Roll. I 25 mean it's been going from being city to regional, more

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

Page 31

1	or less, to state to national and probably global
2	because I following stuff on the Internet.
3	CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sergeant. Thank
4	you, Mr. Hall. And we really appreciate the update and
5	department involvement. I see Captain Conway Petty
6	involved in his leadership downtown. I think
7	everything is coming together for the best interest of
8	the citizens of the City of Detroit, Metropolitan and
9	people feel safe, and that's a good think because there
10	was a time folks did not went to come in unless it's
11	staged event. This is a thing where people just
12	collectively ride. It's like any hiccup, the Free
13	Press Marathon, people complain about some of those
14	issues, but that come with the territory, you know,
15	when you're staging events like that and like other
16	cities. So I'm just so happy that you took time to
17	come out and share this type of dialog and alleviate
18	some of the concerns. Ride tricycles, you know, they
19	need to get with the Slow Rollers. And thank you
20	again. I appreciate it.
21	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I just have one last
22	question. Slow Roll is what I call it seasonal, from
23	April to what?
24	MR. HALL: October.
25	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: October? Okay.



1	Thank you very much.
2	CHAIRMAN BELL: Continue to ride safely.
3	CHAIRMAN BELL: Any other old business?
4	COMMISSIONER CART: I have.
5	CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.
6	COMMISSIONER CARTER: A couple weeks age I
7	inquired about Homeland Security coming to present and
8	Mr. Kincaid did call me and Attorney Bernard contacted
9	him and, yeah. He called me and he is just waiting for
10	a date to be on the agenda to present their
11	presentation to the Board. So whenever, Mr. Chair,
12	you'd like to put him on agenda to the presentation.
13	CHAIRMAN BELL: I assume we can do it in a
14	community meeting. Would that be more appropriate?
15	COMMISSIONER CARTER: That's fine.
16	CHAIRMAN BELL: We don't have to wait that
17	long. It's on August 11 I think the next community
18	meeting. You want to do it at that time or prior to?
19	COMMISSIONER CARTER: No. Community meeting
20	is fine.
21	SECRETARY HICKS: Mr. Chair, we will chat to
22	make sure all the individuals are available on that
23	community meet.
24	CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, ma'am.
25	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you, sir.

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO

1 CHAIRMAN BELL: Announcements. The next 2 meeting is going to be held on July the 28th here at 3 3:00 in Public Safety Headquarters. That's next week. The month is pulling right along. The next community 4 5 meeting is going to be August 11th at 6:30 p.m., 5th precinct. That's in the area of Jefferson and Chalmers 6 for your landmark, and that's Joy Missionary Baptist 7 8 Church, 703 Newport. That's in the area of Jefferson 9 and Chalmers on the east side. It's a small church, 10 but they have an engaging activities in the community. 11 They feed the hungry once or twice a week, and it's also to tie in our Jefferson-Chalmers lower east side 12 13 area because Mr. Brown indicated we haven't been in 14 that particular area in quite some time so I was there 15 for some grass cutting in that area on Newport and 16 talked to the pastor and asked him was he willing to 17 host and we got a confirmation on that. So hopefully we can promote that with that whole Jefferson-Chalmers 18 19 because a long time they've felt left out when they 20 closed the 5th precinct that was St. James and they had 21 to go all the way up to Mack and Gratiot -- not Mack 22 and Gratiot. I'm dating myself, Mr. Crawford. Gratiot and Gunston. And now they have their own precinct 23 24 there at Connors and Mack, and we were there for 25 opening ceremonies so they are enthused about that



Page 34

1 whole area being developed so that's the location of 2 the next one. Share that with you west-siders. We 3 want you to come out next month. Mr. Nelson, can you find Jefferson and Chalmers? 4 5 COMMISSIONER NELSON: Yes, sir. 6 CHAIRMAN BELL: If you can find it, we should be okay. We'll make sure Mr. Mallett gets the map to 7 the location. 8 9 Oral communication from the audience and I 10 ask that you come to the mic. Please give your name 11 and be respectful because we respect you in terms of 12 opportunity to speak. Any others would like to come on 13 the first row. If you can't stand, would you come to 14 the first row. We can get an idea of how many folks 15 we're going to have in terms of speaking. This is your 16 opportunity. Unlike the council, you don't need a 17 quorum. They do have a open format for the community 18 meetings, the council, which I think they got one 19 scheduled for the month before they adjourn for the 20 summer. We don't have that pleasure adjourning for the 21 We engage all year long right during the summer. 2.2 summer. Okay. Yes, ma'am. Madam secretary. 23 MS. BUTLER: Good afternoon. My name is 24 Fredia M. Butler and I am a community activist and 25 through the Chair I would like to thank Commissioner

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

Page 35

1 Carter for the fliers that she had printed out for me 2 as she promised that she was going to do. I had been 3 told that where I could go them done for a certain 4 price, but when you're doing so much in the community, 5 it can be quite expensive with one person coming up 6 with the funds because we are having a voters, we're registering people to vote in our community. It is a 7 8 big big job, very very hard job, but we have volunteers 9 who are working. We are working together. We are 10 calling ourselves community activities and I purchased 11 buttons and stickers and the people really want to get 12 the stickers, but I'm going to save the buttons until 13 closer to the election in November so that we can get 14 as many people out to vote. So as we tell people, 15 you've got to be engaged and stop complaining and get 16 engaged in doing what we need to do and our vote is 17 what will get things done. Thank you. 18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Than you. Yes, ma'am.

MS. HARDING: Good afternoon. I'm Barbara
Harding, Northwest Detroit out of Grandriver-Greenfield
area.

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

23 MS. HARDING: And we got some from the 24 community, we have some appreciation certificates for 25 the three assistant chief of police. I understand they

1 were, you know, they kind of tied up, but I talked to 2 Officer White and he told well bring them and we'll see 3 that, you know, they get them. So they're right here 4 and I brought them and this is from the community, 5 okay? 6 I've been around for many years. I volunteered with many police station up there on 7 8 Grandriver and Greenfield, okay? I also volunteered 9 there at the 6th precinct for on and off, you see. And 10 I work out of community, been out there for a long time. And she, the Mrs., I can't, I can't see your 11 12 name over there on the end there. You were speaking 13 about you needed the community. CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioner Brooks? 14 15 MS. HARDING: The community to help, you 16 know, get involved. That's what I understood you to 17 say, right? 18 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: That's correct. 19 MS. HARDING: Well, I need to get your card 20 and talk to you. And I'm going to leave these here. 21 That's for the people. The community. 2.2 CHAIRMAN BELL: Well, ma'am, you make sure why do any formal process recognizing and appreciating 23 24 for assistant chief or deputy chief, who we want to 25 recognize. Could we coordinate that in terms of with

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1	the good lieutenant and deputy chief whereas we don't
2	want you to come down and not here. Maybe we can make
3	some type of arrangement. You can present it. We can
4	take some photos, shake their hand.
5	MS. HARDING: Okay.
6	CHAIRMAN BELL: Could we do that?
7	MS. HARDING: Sure, you can.
8	CHAIRMAN BELL: You take and hold on to them.
9	You don't have to travel back with them, but don't give
10	them to them. Just hold on to them and then we'll try
11	to do some scheduling, and we apologize. I guess there
12	was couple calls by Coach Mohammed, even tried calling,
13	by I really don't answer that call often. I explained
14	to them you have to call me on my cell phone.
15	MS. HARDING: You understand, we collaborate
16	with other community councils.
17	CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.
18	MS. HARDING: Five or six of them over on the
19	Northwest Detroit. We got strength in numbers, we all
20	know that. All right then. Thank you so much.
21	CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. Work with that
22	coordinating that. Lieutenant got you. Thank you,
23	ma'am. Really appreciate it.
24	MS. HARDING: Sure.
25	CHAIRMAN BELL: Other oral communication from



1	the audience?
2	I'd like to just, Ms. Pannell.
3	MS. PANNELL: Yes.
4	CHAIRMAN BELL: I stated on the record last
5	week at Thursday's community meeting that you did an
6	outstanding, I should say the Detroit Assistant Police
7	Academy Association on your annual picnic out to Belle
8	Isle. You had great food, great fellowship. They even
9	had a jazz band.
10	MS. PANNELL: That was nice. Matter of fact,
11	that was Barb Harding's son.
12	CHAIRMAN BELL: Oh, okay. If you want to
13	elaborate. I know you flew out of town the next day.
14	MS. PANNELL: The lady that just left, Barb
15	Harding, that's her son.
16	My name is Sharon Pannell, and that was Barb
17	Harding's son that did the jazz concert and we had
18	plenty of food and plenty of everything. I worked
19	hard.
20	CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, no doubt. And we really
21	appreciate you in terms of all the communication you
22	sent out. We just want to thank you and that was
23	really nice, you know, to invite this police personnel
24	citywide, you know, etcetera that was there, and I had
25	an opportunity to drop in just at the mealtime.

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 1313-567-8100

1 MS. PANNELL: Well, we like for the police to 2 know who we are because we volunteer a lot with police. 3 And matter of fact, on the 28th, we're going to help 4 out with that youth program, the Summer Jam from 3 to 8 5 next Thursday. 6 CHAIRMAN BELL: And you hold your meetings on what date and time? 7 8 MS. PANNELL: Every second Wednesday of the 9 month starting in September. We don't have a meeting 10 in July and August because we have a picnic. In August we have break, and then we start back up September. 11 And also going to start a new officers Detroit Police 12 13 citizens class in September if anybody's interested. I 14 have applications. Thank you. 15 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. I assume there's 16 no other audience participation at this time. I'd like 17 to just acknowledge that we received a memo dated for 18 this meeting here concerning Chief Craig is proud to 19 announce a partnership with Detroit Police Department 20 and Wayne State University assisting him in completing 21 a Master of Science in Criminal Justice Degree at Wayne 22 State University. The endeavor is bound to be beneficial to the Detroit Police Department, Wayne 23 24 State and the residents of the City of Detroit and we 25 have I guess I'll share this with the board In terms of

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

Page 40 1 how this process works and we might have some questions 2 if we really look at it, but I think on the surface 3 it's great in terms of that type endeavor, but I want to make sure that the Board gets the memo and we can 4 5 have some comments later on in reference to this 6 program. 7 Any other business coming before this committee of the whole? If not. 8 9 SECRETARY HICKS: Mr. Chair? 10 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes. 11 SECRETARY HICKS: As a matter of formality, all of the items that were scheduled for review and 12 13 approval will be moved over in the next agenda. 14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir. No action taken. 15 We stand what -- oh. I want to thank all of you for 16 coming out on this very very nice day the weather 17 outside, I understand why you're here because we have air conditioning. But be safe. And I'd like to close 18 19 on a note of privilege that we all are concerned. We 20 lost three more officers in Louisiana and we just 21 buried five officers, one of them like I state just the 2.2 other day in Michigan. Could we just have a moment of silence for all involved parties, law enforcement and 23 24 all victims of all the issue that we've been dealing

with. I would hope that we meditate on our hearts that



25

1	we find some common ground that this cycle would end
2	and we all come together as concerned citizens and
3	basically it's been difficult for all law enforcement
4	family, but also difficult for those engaging in terms
5	of peacekeeping and victims, etcetera we can debate
6	right and wrong, but we'd just like to have a moment of
7	silence.
8	(Moment of Silence)
9	CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you and have a great
10	day and great weekend.
11	(The proceeding was adjourned at 3:55 p.m.)
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



	Page 42
1	CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY
2	
3	STATE OF MICHIGAN )
4	) SS
5	COUNTY OF JACKSON )
6	I, Melinda R. Womack, Certified Shorthand Reporter, a
7	Notary Public in and for the above county and state, do
8	hereby certify that the above examination under oath was
9	taken before me at the time and place hereinbefore set
10	forth; that the witness was by me first duly sworn to
11	testify to the truth, and nothing but the truth, that the
12	foregoing questions asked and answers made by the witness
13	were duly recorded by me stenographically and reduced to
14	computer transcription; that this is a true, full and
15	correct transcript of my stenographic notes so taken; and
16	that I am not related to, nor of counsel to either party nor
17	interested in the event of this cause.
18	A BICA Sa
19	Melencle R. Domore
20	Melencle R. Domon -
21	Melinda R. Womack CSR3611
22	Notary Public,
23	Jackson County, Michigan
24	My Commission expires: June 22, 2018
25	



Page 1

A
A.C8:21
<b>ability</b> 14:17
<b>able</b> 4:12 6:10
21:5,8 28:10
29:1 30:16
above-entitled
1:10
absolutely 13:18
22:24,25
22.21,20
academy 16:9 17:10,25 18:7 18:9,13 38:7
17:10,25 18:7
18:9,13 38:7
access 28:8
accommodate $0:3$
<pre>accommodate 9:3 acknowledge 7:7</pre>
acknowledge /:/
39:17
<b>act</b> 10:4 24:16
action 40:14
<b>activist</b> 34:24
activists 10:3
10:16 11:7
activities 33:10
35:10
<b>actual</b> 10:7
<b>ad-hoc</b> 5:20
add 3:20 11:5
19:5
added 5:15 26:6
<b>adding</b> 14:22
15:10
additional 21:15
<b>address</b> 24:20
26:16,18 27:12
30:19,23
addressed 28:3
<b>adjourn</b> 34 <b>:</b> 19
adjourned 41:11
adjourning 34:20
adjustment 5:7
Administrative
1:22 4:1
Affairs 20:1
afternoon 2:4,5
3:22 23:6
26:18 34:23
35:19
age 7:3 15:22
32:6
<b>agenda</b> 4:21 5:2
7:9 21:8 32:10

32:12 40:13 aggressively 7:2 **ago**11:6 14:12 16:15 18:6,6 18:10,20 20:17 28:21 30:8 agree 9:13 29:6 **air** 40:18 **Alan** 1:23 alleviate 24:11 31:17 **allow** 28:6,8 allowing 21:22 ambassadorship 26:21 Amendment 8:5 9:2 America 9:12 announce 21:22 39:19 Announcements 33:1 **annual** 38:7 **answer** 12:23 19:17 26:8 37:13 **answers** 13:21 42:12 anybody 3:13 **anybody's** 39:13 **anyway** 29:14 apologize 37:11 APPEARANCES 1:14 **Apple** 27:11 applications 39:14 appointed 1:18 1:18 22:20 appointees 3:9 appointment 22:11,17 appointments 5:13 22:18 appreciate 5:23 5:24 6:24 10:14 11:15 19:19,21 21:17 31:4,20 37:23 38:21 appreciating 36:23 appreciation

35:24 appropriate 3:6 8:7 32:14 appropriately 9:10 **approval** 40:13 approved 21:9 April 31:23 **area** 9:17 15:9 25:17 33:6,8 33:13,14,15 34:1 35:21 **areas** 15:2 arrangement 37:3 arrested 8:9 9:11 arresting 8:12 arrests 10:8 11:8 **arrive** 14:4 **asked** 33:16 42:12 assaultive 12:7 assistant 1:22 4:1 35:25 36:24 38:6 assisting 39:20 Association 38:7 **assume** 2:24 7:8 22:10 32:13 39:15 **Atlanta** 11:13 18:15 attendance 3:4 9:19 **attended** 18:14 attorney 1:22 3:25 32:8 audience 34:9 38:1 39:16 **audits** 14:17 August 32:17 33:5 39:10,10 available 8:16 12:19,22 32:22 average 7:18 13:7,14,20,24 Awaiting 4:17 в **back** 4:13 9:22 13:1 37:9

39:11 backpacks 24:22 **band** 38:9 Baptist 33:7 Barb 38:11,14,16 **Barbara** 35:19 Barren 10:6,13 10:21 Barron's 11:3 Barry 20:3 22:7 **based** 27:6 basically 12:15 41:3 **beauty** 24:4 beginning 27:13 29:9 behalf 3:4 **believe** 10:6 11:8 Bell1:16 2:4,6 2:11,14,17 3:15 4:5,9,15 4:18,22 5:1,23 6:25 8:19 9:7 9:24 11:18 15:22 16:19,21 17:16 18:21,25 19:11,13,23 20:10 21:13,17 22:2,9,22 23:1 23:8,12,14 25:4 29:17 31:3 32:2,3,5 32:13,16,24 33:1 34:6 35:18,22 36:14 36:22 37:6,8 37:17,21,25 38:4,12,20 39:6,15 40:10 40:14 41:9 **Belle** 38:7 beneficial 39:23 Bernard 1:22 3:25 21:21 32:8 **best**19:4 31:7 **better** 13:16 **beyond** 21:14 **bicycle** 28:20,22 29:2 **big**8:18 14:11



Page 2

35:8,8 **bigger** 24:1 **biggest** 15:2,9 15:11 **bike** 7:3 23:10 23:20 24:1 25:25 29:11,20 bikes 23:25 24:10 29:4,8 **birthday** 21:25 22:2,4,8 **Bishop** 2:23 22:13 **bit** 3:7 7:7 14:25 blessings 22:4 blockading 8:5 **board**1:2,21,22 2:5 3:17,25 16:5 18:1,7 21:3,16 26:18 32:11 39:25 40:4 **body** 6:10 **bold** 5:21 **bound** 39:22 **brand** 27:11 **break** 39:11 **bring** 13:16 24:13,24 36:2 Brooks 1:18 2:12 2:12,13 5:18 5:25 6:6,7 15:20 28:16 36:14,18 Brother's 6:17 brought 36:4 Brown 1:22 4:1 33:13 Budget 20:21 building 5:7 8:15,22,24 **buried** 40:21 **Burton** 2:14 15:25 16:1 **bus** 28:5,6 business 16:4 21:19,22 22:1 22:9 23:2,3 32:3 40:7 Butler 34:23,24 **buttons** 35:11,12

С C.I16:17,20 19:5,19,22 20:5,8,15 21:12 22:6 **call** 2:11 12:2 12:19 13:21 19:17 20:24,25 29:13 31:22 32:8 37:13,14 call's 12:17 **called** 20:8 32:9 **calling** 6:13,20 35:10 37:12 calls 7:20,20 37:12 **camera** 4:13 campaign 24:23 **cap** 29:12 Captain 20:1 31:5 card 36:19 cards 27:19 carjacking 13:11 carjackings 7:16 **cars** 14:17 24:10 28:11 **CART** 32:4 **Carter** 1:17 2:15 3:21,22 20:9 20:11 21:11 22:24 27:24 28:10,13 32:6 32:15,19,25 35:1 **case** 20:6 catches 8:22 category 12:9 cause 42:17 caused 13:2 causes 12:23 13:14 causing 28:23 **cell** 37:14 center 6:22 centers 6:11 ceremonies 33:25 ceremony 22:11 22:17,21 **certain** 10:24,25 35:3

certainly 8:2 **CERTIFICATE** 42:1 certificates 35:24 Certified 42:6 certify 42:8 chained 8:14 23:13 chaining 7:23 8:6 10:17 **chains** 8:8,12 **chair** 2:6 5:11 5:25 10:2 11:17 18:19,22 19:12,25 20:9 20:16 23:5 25:6 29:18 32:11,21 34:25 40:9 **Chairman** 2:4,11 3:15 4:5,9,15 4:18,22 5:1,10 5:23 6:25 8:19 9:7,24 11:18 15:22 16:19 17:16 18:21,25 19:11,13,23 20:10 21:13,17 22:2,9,22 23:8 23:12,14 25:4 28:16 29:17 31:3 32:2,3,5 32:13,16,24 33:1 34:6 35:18,22 36:14 36:22 37:6,8 37:17,21,25 38:4,12,20 39:6,15 40:10 40:14 41:9 Chairperson 1:16 2:14,17 23:1 chairpersons 5:22 **Chalmers** 33:6,9 34:4 Chambers 20:1 **chance** 5:6 Chandler 25:15 **change** 27:5 **changed** 23:12,13 24:18

changes 27:1 charged 8:9 **chat** 32:21 **chief**1:21 2:9 3:3,4,8,11,12 3:24 7:9,25 9:20,21 10:2 16:6 17:17 18:4 19:15 20:12 22:16 35:25 36:24,24 37:1 39:18 Chief's 9:25 child 24:19 **church** 6:21 22:13,13 28:21 33:8,9 circumstances 16:2 cities 31:16 citizens 6:13 29:21,22 31:8 39:13 41:2 city1:1 6:4 11:12 15:16 17:4 20:19 21:3 23:20 24:2,4,25 25:2 25:3,13 29:20 30:25 31:8 39:24 **citywide** 38:24 civil 9:11 10:4 **class** 16:9,11,14 16:21,22,23 17:2,9,10,10 17:12,14,23 18:7,13,15,16 19:3 39:13 clearing 15:6 **climate** 24:14 **clock** 14:14 **close** 40:18 **closed** 33:20 **closer** 14:7 15:15 35:13 **club** 29:2,20 **clubs** 28:20,22 Coach 37:12 cofounder 23:19 collaborate 37:15



collaboration 26:20 collected 24:22 collectively 31:12 come 16:6 23:24 24:2,3,5,15,17 27:9,18 29:16 29:22 30:22 31:10,14,17 34:3,10,12,13 37:2 41:2 comes 15:4 coming 6:17,18 12:6 25:6 31:7 32:7 35:5 40:7 40:16 **command** 22:19 Commander 10:6 10:13,21 11:2 20:2 Commencing 1:11 **commend** 10:3,5 19:18 comments 5:5 9:24 40:5 commercials 27:11 Commission 2:6 42:24 Commissioner 2:13,16,20,21 3:1,21,22 4:20 5:18,25 6:6,7 10:1,11 11:5 11:17,19 13:15 15:20,24 16:1 16:21 18:1,18 18:23 19:12,14 19:21,23,24 20:6,9,11 21:11,14,19 22:24 25:5,9 25:11,20 26:9 26:13 27:24 28:10,13,16 29:18 30:21 31:21,25 32:4 32:6,15,19,25 34:5,25 36:14 36:18 Commissioners

1:2 21:21 25:4 28:1 committee 5:22 6:1 40:8 committees 5:20 **common** 41:1 communication 34:9 37:25 38:21 community 6:11 6:22 26:21,22 27:14,22 30:17 32:14,17,19,23 33:4,10 34:17 34:24 35:4,7 35:10,24 36:4 36:10,13,15,21 37:16 38:5 complacent 26:3 complain 31:13 complaining 35:15 complaint 29:22 complaints 29:20 30:22,24 complete 5:14 completing 39:20 computer 42:14 **concern** 30:16 concerned 4:25 40:19 41:2 concerning 39:18 concerns 9:25 15:24 17:16 23:16 31:18 **concert** 38:17 conditioning 40:18 condo 30:13 conduct 8:9 confirmation 33:17 connected 15:18 **Connors** 33:24 **Conrad** 2:18 conscientious 11:3 considering 30:24 contacted 32:8 contained 25:17 continue 5:1

14:23 28:6 32:2 **contract** 20:15 **control** 4:14 29:15 **Conway** 31:5 coordinate 36:25 coordinating 37:22 **copy** 22:10 copyright 22:3 **corner** 30:12,13 corporation 20:22 correct 2:25 10:10 12:5 25:8 26:12 36:18 42:15 council 21:3,9 34:16,18 councils 37:16 **counsel** 20:23 42:16 county 42:5,7,23 couple 11:6 12:6 12:13 14:2,20 18:5,21,22,23 22:20 23:22 25:21 32:6 37:12 course 3:25 11:9 **court** 4:3,8 **Craig** 3:8 39:18 Crawford 1:17 2:15,16,21 3:1 10:1,11 11:5 18:10,18,23 19:23,24 21:20 25:5,9,11,20 26:9,13 29:18 30:21 31:21,25 33:22 **created** 5:16 13:22 crime 6:8 7:11 12:25 crimes 12:7,9 Criminal 39:21 critical 13:10 **cross** 28:9 CSR3611 1:12 42:21

Page 3

cue 12:17,17 15:2,11 curriculum 18:6 18:8,11 19:6 **cut** 8:8,18 14:20 cutting 8:12 33:15 cycle 12:24 41:1 D **D.C**3:8 7:10 8:21 9:13 10:10,20 12:5 13:18 22:19,23 22:25 **Dallas** 9:16,20 **date** 32:10 39:7 dated 39:17 dates 7:15 dating 33:22 **David** 3:3 Davis-Drake 1:21 2:8 16:6 Davis-Drake's 21:25 day 4:4 19:2 38:13 40:16,22 41:10 **DBA** 20:13,25 **dealing** 40:24 **dear** 6:2 **debate** 41:5 **decade** 18:20 decision 4:24 **decrease** 15:11 definitely 10:20 15:17 **Degree** 39:21 delays 14:24 delighted 21:24 demonstrate 9:8 department 3:11 7:2 9:21 10:5 10:7 18:17 20:22 24:9 26:6 31:5 39:19,23 departments 20:19 depending 29:9 29:10 **depends** 26:25



Page 4

<b>deputy</b> 3:3 7:9	<b>DPD</b> 18:15 22:10	<b>engage</b> 26 <b>:</b> 22
9:25 18:4	Drake 3:24 16:17	27:14 34:21
22:16 36:24	16:20 17:17	<b>engaged</b> 35:15,16
37:1	19:5,15,19,22	<pre>engagement 17:24</pre>
Derrick 1:18	20:5,8,12,15	<pre>engaging 17:25</pre>
2:18	21:12 22:6	33:10 41:4
<pre>Detroit1:1,11</pre>	drive 14:4,13,25	<b>ensure</b> 27:21
2:1 6:4,5 9:15	<b>driving</b> 14:19	29:8,10
9:17 10:15	drop 38:25	entertain 7:6
11:13 17:4	<b>due</b> 16:2	enthused 33:25
23:19,20 24:4	duly 42:10,13	entire 8:11,12
24:4,9 26:6,19 28:18 31:8	<b>Duncan's</b> 17:9	17:14 18:8
35:20 37:19	<b>duty</b> 7:25	entrance 8:6
38:6 39:12,19	E	equipment 10:24 10:25
39:23,24	<b>E</b> 1:16	equipped 14:16
developed 34:1	e-mail 19:17	essence 24:5
Dewaelsche 2:17	eager 16:24	etcetera 10:12
dialog 31:17	earlier 20:24	38:24 41:5
different 17:3	<b>early</b> 19:3	ethnicities 17:3
19:25 20:18	<b>east</b> 33:9,12	<b>Eva</b> 2:17
25:15 30:9	Ebenezer 22:12	evening 3:24
difficult 41:3,4	<b>Edgar</b> 2:23	<b>event</b> 30:15
direct 18:3	<b>effort</b> 16:11	31:11 42:17
directly 18:2	efforts 6:3	<b>events</b> 10:21
discrimination	either 8:24 27:5	11:4 30:9
7:3	42:16	31:15
discussions 5:12	elaborate 38:13	everybody 9:1
disobedience	election 35:13	23:21 25:17
9:12 10:4	Elizabeth 1:18	26:1
disorderly 8:9	2:12	everybody's 8:3
<b>dispatch</b> 13:24 14:7	<pre>emergency 28:1,7 28:8 29:23</pre>	8:4,25
dispatched 14:3	28:8 29:23 30:18,18	<b>evolution</b> 24:8 26:3,10
dispatcher 12:18	emotional 24:19	evolved 24:7
15:4	employed 26:10	27:11
dispatcher's	26:14	<b>exactly</b> 18:9
15:12	employment 26:11	examination 42:8
disruptive 11:11	26:14,23	excellent 10:23
<b>District</b> 1:17,17	<b>EMS</b> 28:1	17:21 19:16,18
2:7 15:25	encounter 27:7	<b>excused</b> 2:17,18
<b>diverse</b> 17:1,2	28:5	2:21,23,23 4:4
27:8,20	encounters 8:10	16:2
<b>doing</b> 19:15,17	encouraging	exercised 9:8
20:8 35:4,16	14:22	<b>expanded</b> 25:21
dollars 25:1	endeavor 39:22	expect 8:19
Dolunt 8:22	40:3	expensive 35:5
domestic 12:8	ended 8:10,24	experience 16:12
<b>door</b> 7:24	9:4	expires 42:24
<b>doubt</b> 21:4 38:20	<b>energy</b> 24:25,25	explain 23:23
downtown 3:13 26:19 31:6	enforcement 40:23 41:3	<pre>explained 37:13 exposed 18:1</pre>
20.19 31.0	70.23 41.3	erhosed TO:T
	-	

19:8 express 9:1 F **fact**11:14 38:10 39:3 fall12:9 13:1 17:13 family 22:5,21 41:4 **farther** 14:8 featured 27:10 **feed** 33:11 **feel** 6:19 31:9 fellowship 38:8 **felt** 33:19 females 17:2 **figured** 13:22 final 20:23 **finance** 20:21 **find**15:5 21:1 34:4,6 41:1 **fine** 32:15,20 **fire** 8:23 fireworks 30:10 30:11 **first** 4:10 8:4 9:2 10:2 34:13 34:14 42:10 **five** 37:18 40:21 **flew** 38:13 **fliers** 35:1 **focus** 24:24 25:1 folks 31:10 34:14 **follow** 18:5 **follow-up** 18:14 following 31:2 **food** 38:8,18 force 8:11 forced 10:12 foregoing 42:12 foremost 10:2 formal 22:21 36:23 formality 5:3 40:11 **format** 34:17 **former** 20:16 **forth** 3:18 42:10 forthcoming 16:25



**forward** 6:1 7:6 10:23 16:3 23:3 **four** 12:11 20:21 Fredia 34:24 **free** 8:5 25:25 31:12 **freeway** 27:4 **Friday** 22:12 **friends** 29:14 **front** 7:24 11:2 **full**15:10 42:14 **funds** 35:6 funeral 9:15,19 G **Gail** 4:4 gather 5:5,6 9:9 getting 6:15 24:18 29:23 **gift** 9:21 **give** 8:20 19:8 22:7 23:8 34:10 37:9 given 2:10 12:22 gives 28:17 giving 23:21 28:25 Gleaners 24:24 **global** 31:1 **go** 3:18 6:11,12 6:22 9:2,5 12:25 13:1,2 14:2,23 18:16 20:19,20,22 23:16 26:22 27:2 33:21 35:3 **goes** 21:10 going 2:7 3:2,2 3:16,18 4:19 5:4 6:9,9,10 6:11,14 11:20 12:12 14:6 16:3,5 18:11 20:13,18 21:4 21:6 22:11 24:23 27:4 28:20,22 29:12 30:25 33:2,5 34:15 35:2,12 36:20 39:3,12

good 2:4 3:15,22 17:4,5,9 19:11 24:21 25:24 26:18 31:9 34:23 35:19 37:1 **GPS** 14:17 graduation 19:2 Grandriver 36:8 Grandriver-Gr... 35:20 grass 33:15 **Gratiot** 33:21,22 33:22 **great** 5:17 6:20 17:14 19:1 24:25,25 26:20 27:8,20 29:19 29:19 38:8,8 40:3 41:9,10 greater 14:5 15:14 Greenfield 36:8 Gregory 1:21 3:17 grew 9:16 ground 41:1 group 8:1 27:9 27:20 groups 9:3 grow 26:4,5 **grown** 24:7 guess 10:18 11:13 23:4 37:11 39:25 **Gunston** 33:23 н Hall 23:7,11,13 23:18,18 25:8 25:10,12,23 26:12,16 27:2 27:10 31:4,24 hand 37:4 **handled** 7:19 10:7,14 happens 24:16 happy 22:2,4,8 31:16 hard 6:9,15 24:11 25:24 35:8 38:19

Harding 35:19,20 35:23 36:15,19 37:5,7,15,18 37:24 38:15 Harding's 38:11 38:17 **HBO** 27:10 Headquarters 33:3 hear 4:9 21:24 heard 11:24 21:23 **hearsay** 18:2 **heart** 6:3 **hearts** 40:25 held1:10 21:6 33:2 help 6:13 19:7 26:8 36:15 39:3 hereinbefore 42:9 **Hi** 2:6 **hiccup** 31:12 Hicks 1:21 2:25 3:17,20,23 4:7 4:11,17,20,23 5:9,10,11 16:5 21:13,14 22:7 32:21 40:9,11 higher 13:5,14 hit 25:23 **hold** 37:8,10 39:6 home 12:1 29:25 Homeland 32:7 homes 30:17 homicides 7:12 hope 11:1 17:11 23:12 24:24 40:25 hopefully 33:17 host 33:17 **hot** 5:6 hour 8:8 30:5 huge 23:9 hundreds 25:22 hungry 33:11 Ι idea 19:2 34:14 **identify** 12:18

23:14 **Ill** 17:9 **impact** 27:4,21 impede 28:13 important 23:22 impressed 17:23 improvement 15:18 incident 8:11 10:15 11:9 included 7:16 includes 6:25 including 12:8 **increase** 12:15 12:23 increased 14:8 14:10 indicated 8:2 33:13 individually 13:8 individuals 8:13 32:22 information 16:25 17:6 20:3 28:24 inquired 32:7 **inside** 5:7 **intake** 13:19 **interaction** 6:2 16:8,13,14 19:1 interacts 17:18 interest 27:19 31:7 interested 39:13 42:17 Internal 20:1 Internet 31:2 intersection 29:24 introduce 3:5 4:6 introducing 3:17 introduction 3:6 3:18 investigator 1:21 2:9 3:24 4:2 16:6 17:17 19:15 20:12 **invite** 38:23 invocation 2:8



2:10 **involved** 31:6 36:16 40:23 involvement 26:21 31:5 **Isle** 38:8 **issue** 8:18 10:17 22:3 23:9 24:6 28:3 29:23 40:24 **issues** 8:14 11:15 12:6 17:21 24:20 27:3,7 30:3 31:14 item 4:24 7:8 16:4 items 21:16 40:12 J **Jackson** 42:5,23 jail 9:5,6 **Jam** 39:4 **James** 33:20 **Jason** 23:18 jazz 38:9,17 **Jefferson** 33:6,8 34:4 Jefferson-Cha... 33:12,18 **Jenae** 26:18 **job** 6:20 10:23 17:22 19:16,18 20:8 35:8,8 **Johnson** 3:12 **join** 29:14 **joined** 3:21 joining 15:25 16:1 **Joy** 33:7 July 1:12 2:2 22:11 33:2 39:10 **June** 42:24 **Justice** 39:21 ĸ **keep** 24:12 25:17 **Keeper** 6:17 **kept** 30:13

key 10:18

**keys** 8:15,20 Kincaid 32:8 kind11:11 36:1 kinds 28:22 **knew** 21:25 **know** 6:21 7:4,22 8:1,16 9:14,21 11:4,14 12:12 13:10 16:12 17:18,25 18:2 18:10,13 19:8 20:14,15,23 22:1 25:25 27:12,14,25 28:25 29:7,11 30:5,14 31:14 31:18 36:1,3 36:16 37:20 38:13,23,24 39:2 knowing 19:6 knowledge 18:12 knowledgeable 17:8 L **lady** 38:14 landmark 33:7 **large** 11:6 **larger** 29:20 **largest** 16:22 17:15 **latest** 21:10 **law** 9:8 20:22 40:23 41:3 **leadership** 31:6 **leave** 36:20 **left** 33:19 38:14 **length** 26:25 LeValley 3:3,8 7:9,10 8:21 9:13 10:10,20 12:5 13:18 18:5 22:16,19 22:23,25 **level** 15:19 17:25 lieutenant 3:11 6:23 16:15 37:1,22 **life** 24:17 likelihood 14:6

15:14Linda 1:22 3:25 **lines** 11:2 Lisa1:17 2:15 listing 5:14 **lists** 12:10 **little** 3:6 6:15 7:7 14:25 17:19 **live** 30:12 location 7:25 8:7 34:1,8 locations 27:19 **locked** 10:19 23:11 **locks** 8:16,17 10:18 **long** 32:17 33:19 34:21 36:10 **longer** 11:20,21 12:3 **look** 13:8,18 14:17 18:8 40:2 **looked** 11:24 looking 6:1 17:22 **lost** 40:20 **lot** 9:17 15:15 15:18 17:3 23:23 24:1,13 24:25 25:15 30:23 39:2 Louisiana 40:20 **love** 19:10 24:20 **low** 12:14 **lower** 13:12 33:12 Μ **M** 34:24 **ma'am** 21:20 28:4 28:12,15 32:5 32:24 34:22 35:18,22 36:22 37:17,23 Mack 33:21,21,24 **Madam** 20:16 34:22 magnitude 30:24 main 30:15 making 4:24

Mallett 2:18 34:7 man's 12:1 manages 11:3 manning 4:13 map 34:7 Marathon 30:9 31:13 Master 39:21 **matter** 1:10 16:7 38:10 39:3 40:11 **mayor** 11:9,12 mayor's 3:9 mealtime 38:25 **mean** 11:14 18:15 30:8,25 media 4:10,12 **meditate** 40:25 **meet** 25:12,16 32:23 **meeting** 1:5 2:5 5:18 16:18 21:2,2,3,3,5,9 21:15 32:14,18 32:19 33:2,5 38:5 39:9,18 meetings 23:4 34:18 39:6 **Melinda** 1:12 42:6,21 membership 5:22 **memo** 39:17 40:4 men 6:10 **mention** 24:12 message 8:4 10:21,25 14:15 17:20 Metropolitan 6:4 31:8 mic 16:6 34:10 Michigan 1:11 2:1 40:22 42:3 42:23 **middle** 11:10 **mind** 26:17 **Mindy** 4:3,7 **minimum** 27:22 **minute** 15:1 **minutes** 11:21,22 12:3,12,14 13:3,20,25



Page 7

14:21 15:3	22
23:15 30:4,4	39
missed 3:13	new
Missionary 33:7	New
Mohammed 37:12	new
moment 40:22	nic
41:6,8	38
<b>Monday</b> 25:10	nig
Mondays 25:7	nig
<b>month</b> 20:16	noi
28:21 33:4	Non
34:3,19 39:9	non
<b>months</b> 16:24	Nor
22:20	37
Moore 2:18	Not
morning 7:11	not
11:23 16:10	10
morphed 27:12	not
29:8 motorcycles	<b>not</b> 25
24:10	not
motorized 7:4	22
move 4:19 5:3	Nov
7:6 16:3 23:3	num
7:6 16:3 23:3 25:13,16 30:14	12
<b>moved</b> 20:17	26
40:13	num
<b>moving</b> 25:2	26
<pre>moving 25:2 multiple 12:9</pre>	
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26
multiple 12:9     N	26 37 
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 
multiple 12:9 N name 23:18 34:10 34:23 36:12	26 37 oat OCI
multiple 12:9 N name 23:18 34:10 34:23 36:12 38:16	26 37 oat OCI Oct
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI
multiple 12:9 N name 23:18 34:10 34:23 36:12 38:16	26 37 oat OCI OCI
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI OCI off 14
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 9: 13
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 9: 13 15
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 9: 13
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI OCI off 14 off 13 15 26 27
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Off 14 off 15 26 27 39
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Off 14 off 13 15 26 27 39 oft
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Off 14 off 13 15 26 27 39 0ft 30
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI OCI off 14 off 13 15 26 27 39 0ft 30 oh 4
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 15 26 27 39 oft 30 oh 4 38
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 13 15 26 27 39 oft 30 oh 4 38 oka
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 13 15 26 27 39 oft 30 oh 4 38 oka 22
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 13 15 26 27 39 oft 30 oh 4 38 oka 22 24
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI Oct off 14 off 13 15 26 27 39 oft 30 oh 4 38 oka 22
<pre>multiple 12:9</pre>	26 37 oat OCI OCI off 14 off 15 26 27 39 oft 30 oh 4 38 oka 22 24 34

2:1,9 23:2 9:12 **rer** 16:23 **port** 33:8,15 **is** 7:23 ce 22:23 38:10 8:23 40:16 **ht** 7:22 9:5 **nts** 25:10 **se** 11:24 fatal 7:12 violent 10:4 **thwest** 35:20 7:19 **ary** 42:1,7,22 e 2:22 5:15 0:13 40:19 es 42:15 **iced** 11:21 5:20 ification 2:14**ember** 35:13 **ber** 7:16 2:21 20:21 6:25 29:13 **bers** 25:24,24 6:4 29:16 7:19 ο **h** 42:8 18:1 **cober** 31:24,25 **icer** 7:25 4:3 20:2 36:2 **ficers** 9:16,17 :18 12:2 3:17 14:15,22 5:10 22:19 6:10,13,25 7:13 30:11 9:12 40:20,21 **centimes** 29:21 0:22 4:9 20:16 8:12 40:15 **y** 4:11,19 5:1 2:15 23:1,1 4:1 31:25 4:7,22 36:5,8 7:5 38:12

**old**15:22 23:3 32:3 once 15:12 25:13 26:4 27:1 33:11 ones 12:7 13:9 28:23 open 34:17 opening 33:25 **operator** 13:21 opportunity 15:17 16:20 17:11 23:9,21 28:18 34:12,16 38:25 **opposed** 30:1 oral 34:9 37:25 order 9:8 organization 6:21 organizer 8:1 **ourself** 16:11 outside 5:6 23:11 40:17 outstanding 38:6 oversees 10:21 oversight 14:11 Oxendine 4:4 Ρ **p.m**1:11 2:3 33:5 41:11 **pace** 7:6 **package** 5:14 packet 5:12 20:2 **Page** 1:8 **Pam** 3:24 16:6 **Pamela** 1:21 2:8 19:15 21:24 **Pannell** 38:2,3 38:10,14,16 39:1,8 **paper** 5:21 paramount 29:7 **pardon** 18:19 **Park** 25:14,15 part 4:12 5:17 12:8 16:11 26:2,9,11 participants 29:13 participated

17:8 participation 39:16 participative 17:1 particular 5:16 11:9 30:14 33:14 particularly 10:6 30:9,17 **parties** 40:23 partnered 24:9 24:23,24 partnership 26:5 39:19 **party** 42:16 pass 27:19 **pastor** 22:14 33:16 **patient** 10:23 **patrol** 7:4,5 **pattern** 30:15 **PD** 18:15 peace 9:8 peacefully 8:25 peacekeeping 41:5 **people** 4:12 6:15 6:23 9:11 12:21 15:13,21 23:24,24 24:2 24:14,15,17 25:1 26:1 28:18 30:11,12 30:16 31:9,11 31:13 35:7,11 35:14,14 36:21 **person** 8:2 35:5 personal 16:2 personally 29:1 personnel 38:23 personnel-wise 15:23 **Petty** 31:5 **phone** 12:2 37:14 **photos** 37:4 physical 8:10 **picnic** 38:7 39:10 piggyback 19:9 place 22:11 25:13 42:9



**places** 6:12 25:16 **placing** 10:24 **plate** 19:1 **Please** 34:10 **pleasure** 34:20 **plenty** 38:18,18 point 9:10,11 11:10 19:11 20:7 **pointed** 8:22 police 1:2 2:6 5:18 6:14,23 7:1 8:6 9:16 9:17,19 10:15 18:1 24:9,10 26:6,6,10,19 35:25 36:7 38:6,23 39:1,2 39:12,19,23 **pops** 15:8 population 6:4 possibly 6:16 **preceded** 18:20 precinct 7:24 33:6,20,23 36:9 **prepare** 29:16 present 1:20 2:13,16 3:11 7:8 16:11 32:7 32:10 37:3 presentation 19:9 32:11,12 presented 9:21 17:7 19:2 president 23:5 23:20 **Press** 31:13 price 35:4 **printed** 35:1 **prior** 32:18 **priority** 7:18,20 12:6,7,10,10 12:11,16,20 13:4,6,9,10,12 13:13 14:12,18 14:24 15:3,7,7 15:8,9,14 privilege 40:19 probably 7:22 15:1 30:2 31:1

problem 8:23 13:23,23 24:6 24:14 problems 28:23 **proceed** 4:21 proceeding 41:11 Proceedings 1:10 **process** 20:17 21:1 36:23 40:1 program 39:4 40:6 progress 12:7 promised 35:2 **promote** 33:18 promotion 22:10 22:10,16,17 **protest** 8:3 9:1 10:8 11:7 24:13 protesters 7:23 10:3,16 protestors 11:7 protests 10:22 proud 39:18 provisions 27:6 public 29:6 33:3 42:7,22 pull 15:7 pulled 27:15 pulling 15:5 33:4 purchased 35:10 purchasing 20:20 20:23 21:7,8 pursuant 5:12 push14:11 21:7 **put**13:15 29:12 32:12 putting 11:2 Q quelled 11:12 question 11:20 11:23 20:11 27:24 31:22 questions 9:24 15:24 17:16 19:17 23:16 26:8 27:23,25 40:1 42:12 quickest 12:13

Quinn 1:23 quite 15:22 20:5 33:14 35:5 quiz 17:19 **quorum** 2:24 4:17 4:18,25 5:2 34:17 R **R**1:12 42:6,21 **ramps** 27:4 **rapid** 7:6 **react** 29:15 **real** 10:15 **really** 10:13 16:12 17:20,21 25:21 28:19 31:4 35:11 37:13,23 38:20 38:23 40:2 **reason** 11:22 12:11 **received** 20:2,25 39:17 receiving 14:18 receptive 17:6,7 recognize 36:25 recognizing 36:23 **record** 15:25 38:4 recorded 8:11 42:13 Recorder 1:23 recorders 4:6 **recruit** 6:9,23 recruiting 5:19 6:3 7:2 16:8 27:17,18 **Redford** 9:15 **redirect** 15:14 **reduced** 42:13 reference 9:25 40:5 reflect 16:1 regarding 28:1 Reginald 1:17 2:15 **region** 9:18 regional 30:25 registering 35:7 Regular 1:5

Page 8

reimburse 26:23 **related** 42:16 **relay** 10:20 **remove** 8:17 rendition 5:16 **report** 5:4 7:9 9:25 **reported** 16:17 **reporter** 4:3,8 42:6 reports 7:11 requested 18:5 20:4require 4:24 reserve 5:4 residents 17:5 28:10 39:24 resolved 22:3 **respect** 34:11 respectful 34:11 respond 7:25 12:19 responded 9:10 response 7:18 11:20 12:16 13:4,11,13 14:12 28:1 restaurants 25:2 **result** 5:17 retreat 3:9 **return** 20:25 Reverend 2:8 **review** 40:12 Ricard 2:18 Richard 2:22 **ride** 23:24,25 24:1,3 25:7,25 27:3 31:12,18 32:2 **riders** 28:6,8 **rides** 27:14 **riding** 27:22 **right** 5:21 8:3,5 8:25 9:1,4,7 11:25 12:15,20 13:10,19 18:17 20:17 22:15 33:4 34:21 36:3,17 37:20 41:6 rights 9:2 **River** 29:3,4



Page 9

**road** 25:18 robberies 7:14 12:8 **robbery** 7:16 **Robert**1:22 4:1 roll 2:11 7:1 23:19 26:15,20 26:22 27:18 28:5 29:19,25 30:1,2,6,6,6 30:24 31:22 **Rollers** 7:1 23:5 23:6 28:17,19 29:3 31:19 rolling 5:24 **roof** 12:1,2,4,5 12:6 **room** 4:14 **rooting** 17:13 **Rosedale** 25:14 roughly 25:12,19 route 27:1,2,3,4 27:5 28:9 29:10 **row** 34:13,14 **run**13:8 14:3,7 14:19,23,25 15:3,7,8,15 **runs** 12:21,21,23 13:4,6,7,11,13 S **safe** 29:11 31:9 40:18 **safely** 32:2 **safety** 29:7 33:3 Sanders 1:18 2:19,20 11:17 11:19 13:15 15:20 19:12,14 19:21 20:6 **save** 35:12 **saw** 7:22 saying 19:6 scene 10:7 14:4 **scheduled** 34:19 40:12 scheduling 37:11 **Science** 39:21 **screen** 15:12 seasonal 31:22 **second** 22:12

39:8 secondary 26:11 26:14,23 seconds 23:22 secretary 1:21 2:24,25 3:16 3:20,23 4:7,11 4:17,20,23 5:9 5:11 16:5 21:14 32:21 34:22 40:9,11 Security 32:7 **see** 3:15 9:9 11:25 12:24,25 13:9 15:11,24 17:4,5,20 19:1 22:17 27:3 28:18 31:5 36:2,9,11 seen 12:16 24:8 26:20 **sees** 15:4 **send**13:24 14:6 15:6,8 30:12 sending 30:13 **senior** 22:14 **sent** 10:25 14:14 38:22 September 39:9 39:11,13 sergeant 1:23 3:12 17:9 26:7 26:17,18 28:4 28:12,15 29:6 30:19 31:3 sergeant-lieu... 16:18 sergeant-lieu... 16:15 **service** 4:10 7:20 services 3:13 4:12 26:19,24 27:15 **set** 42:9 **shake** 37:4 **share** 6:5 16:8 16:13 21:16 31:17 34:2 39:25 **shared** 18:12 Sharon 38:16

**Shelby** 2:22 **Sheriff's** 18:16 shooting 6:8 13:11 shootings 6:14 7:13 Shorthand 42:6 **show** 26:1 29:12 **shows** 15:12 **side** 33:9,12 **signed** 20:16 significant 16:10 **silence** 40:23 41:7,8 Simms 20:2 **sing** 22:2 sir 3:1,15 4:5,6 4:15,22 5:23 7:10 10:1,2,19 11:16,18 18:18 19:19,24 20:8 21:17 23:7,18 25:5,6 26:16 30:19 32:25 34:5 40:14 **sit** 30:7 sitting 3:10 30:3 **six**10:8 17:2 37:18 **slow** 7:1,5 23:4 23:6,19 25:14 26:15,20,22 27:18 28:4,17 28:19 29:2,19 29:25 30:1,2,6 30:24 31:19,22 small 33:9 **somebody** 11:25 14:7 **son** 38:11, 15, 17 **sorry** 5:9 21:4 **sort** 30:18 southwest 6:12 **speak** 16:21 17:11 23:21 26:5 34:12 speaking 34:15 36:12 specials 27:10 **speech** 8:5

spending 25:1 **spoken** 16:23 17:15 **spread** 15:15 **SS** 42:4 **St** 33:20 staff 3:12,19 staffing 15:10 15:18 staged 31:11 **staging** 31:15 **stand** 34:13 40:15 standing 5:20 start 7:11 15:5 26:21 29:1 39:11,12 **started** 16:24 26:4,4 28:21 starting 39:9 **state** 24:3 27:13 31:1 39:20,22 39:24 40:21 42:3,7 stated 25:9 27:8 27:17 38:4 station 8:6 36:7 **statue** 9:22 stenographic 42:15 stenographically 42:13 **step** 11:10 **stepped** 11:11 stickers 35:11 35:12 Stinson 3:12 26:7,17,19 28:4,12,15 29:6 30:19 **stop** 28:5,7 35:15 **stopped** 14:14 29:24 **stops** 14:20,24 **story** 30:11 straight 14:19 14:23 **street** 1:10 11:25 12:22 14:5,22 28:11 strength 37:19



30:14 37:10

**trying** 12:18

	1
<b>stress</b> 24:11	t
stuck 8:23	
stuff 11:2 30:10	
31:2 subcommittee 5:8	
5:10,13	
subcommittees	t
5:15,19	t
<pre>subject 16:7</pre>	t
19:25	
submits 27:2	
<pre>subsequent 21:5</pre>	
summer 34:20,21 34:22 39:4	
supervising 4:2	
supervisors	
14:16,16	
supervisory	
14:10	
<pre>support 8:2,4,25</pre>	
30:2,3	
<pre>sure 10:12 13:9 14:18 17:12,19</pre>	
17:24 26:7	
32:22 34:7	
36:22 37:7,24	t
40:4	
<pre>surface 40:2</pre>	t
<b>surface</b> 40:2 <b>sworn</b> 42:10	t
	t
<b>sworn</b> 42:10	t] t]
<b>sworn</b> 42:10	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6    18:8 22:11    23:15,22 25:18    37:4,8</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6    18:8 22:11    23:15,22 25:18    37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24</pre>	
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14</pre>	t] T]
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16</pre>	ti Ti ti
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16 36:1</pre>	ti Ti ti ti
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16 36:1 talking 13:5</pre>	ti Ti ti
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16 36:1 talking 13:5 16:7 24:13</pre>	t) t) T) t) t) t)
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16 36:1 talking 13:5 16:7 24:13 taught 18:9</pre>	ti Ti ti ti
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16 36:1 talking 13:5 16:7 24:13 taught 18:9 team 17:14 tell 30:10 35:14</pre>	t)
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16 36:1 talking 13:5 16:7 24:13 taught 18:9 team 17:14 tell 30:10 35:14 ten 11:7,8,14</pre>	t)
<pre>sworn 42:10 T t 30:11 tactic 8:17 take 12:3 15:6 18:8 22:11 23:15,22 25:18 37:4,8 taken 1:10 40:14 42:9,15 takes 13:21,24 talk 6:7 24:18 24:21 36:20 talked 8:1 20:14 23:3 33:16 36:1 talking 13:5 16:7 24:13 taught 18:9 team 17:14 tell 30:10 35:14</pre>	t)

terms 6:3 19:3 36:2 39:2 41:4	3 5 5	4:	1	1	,	6 8 1	:: 5	2 8
territ testi: thank 3:1, 3:20 5:23 7:10 11:4 16:1 19:1 20:3 21:1 23:1 31:3 32:2 35:1 37:2 39:1 41:9 thing	toj fy 2:3,461,159,27,34,724,27	421 18:22:05 122:12 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1	· , 1 , 4 1 1 · 1 9 · · · ·	1141,9542122 3224	14,52 :,0,2534020	1 5 21:1::2:,	5 341366:22 1	5 1 5
31:1 thing: 14:1 24:2 28:2 think 9:18 16:1 18:1 21:2 23:2 28:1 29:1 31:9 34:1 think: Third though though thous: 11:7	s 4 3 2 3:1 7, 3 3, 9, 3 8 1: hts and	197 130222222 1022222 1202222 100222 10022 1002 100200 1002 1000 10000 100000000		9179 12322372: 25	6 70 891 2 0	2		
thous: three 18:6 35:2 Thurse	and 12 2 5	<b>1s</b> :1 3: 40	0 4 ):	, 2	1 1 0	5	2 :	7

2:2 39:5 Thursday's 38:5 ticket 13:22 tie 33:12 tied 36:1 time 2:7 3:5,6 3:16 4:10,19 6:6 7:19 11:20 12:2,11,16,17 12:17,22,23 13:2,5,6,11,13 13:13,16,20,20 13:21,22 14:1 14:3,4,4,8,12 14:20,25 15:2 15:11,23 21:7 24:7,7,12 25:9 25:11 31:10,16 32:18 33:14,19 36:11 39:7,16 42:9 times 13:19	
25:23 today 3:10,11 4:3,6 20:24 21:25 today's 21:2 told 35:3 36:2 tomorrow 21:4 tomorrow's 21:2 tools 8:17 top 21:15 total 7:20 town 38:13	
Township 9:16 track 20:24 traffic 28:14,23 30:14,15 training 3:10 tranguility 9:9 transcript 42:15 transcription 42:14 travel 14:1,8 37:9 trend 13:1	
tricycles 31:18 tried 29:12 37:12 true 24:4 42:14 truth 42:11,11 try 25:16,18	

#### 13:16 21:1,6 29:25 **Tuesday** 9:14 16:9,10 tune 17:21 turn 27:6,6 twice 33:11 **two** 4:12 6:19 12:10 13:4 14:11,12 16:24 18:14,20 23:4 23:15 **type** 13:8 17:23 17:24 27:5 31:17 37:3 40:3 U ultimately 10:19 understand 17:19 30:8 35:25 37:15 40:17 understood 36:16 **unit**12:19 14:6 **units** 14:5,22 15:5,13,15 20:18 University 39:20 39:22 unnecessary 14:20,24 **update** 20:12 21:10 31:4 **use** 11:1 **usually** 25:12 v Vann 2:23 22:13 **vehicles** 28:7,8 30:18 **venue** 8:7 **versus** 12:21 **victims** 40:24 41:5 **violent** 24:6 **volume** 12:14,20

volunteer 39:2

volunteering

36:8

volunteered 36:7

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO A13-567-8100

	1	1	2
5:25	12:13 13:7,19	young 6:9,23	<b>3rd</b> 7:24
volunteers 35:8	14:1 15:3 16:9	youth 39:4	
<b>vote</b> 4:24 35:7	16:15 20:13		4
35:14,16	24:5 27:1,1,21	Z	<b>4</b> 2:7
<b>voters</b> 35:6	33:3,11 38:5	zillions 28:20	<b>42</b> 1:8
	weekend 41:10		
W	weekly 2:5 24:1	0	5
<b>wait</b> 32:16	weeks 11:6 12:14		<b>5</b> 15:25
waiting $18:4$	18:6,6 32:6	1	<b>5,567</b> 7:20
32:9	welcome 2:4 20:5	<b>1</b> 1:8	<b>5:30</b> 25:17
<b>walk</b> 29:3,4,5	21:12	<b>1,378</b> 7:14	<b>508</b> 7:13
want3:4 6:5 7:1	went 9:20 31:10	<b>1,640</b> 7:15	<b>54</b> 7:14
7:7 10:3,5,12	west-siders 34:2	<b>1,700</b> 13:7	<b>562</b> 7:13
16:8 17:17,24	White 22:7 36:2	<b>1,701</b> 7:19	<b>5th</b> 33:5,20
19:25 24:16	Willie 1:16 2:6	1.613:20,24	
25:14 26:2	2:14 15:24	<b>10</b> %7:14	6
29:7,10 30:22	willing 33:16	10.314:1,21	<b>6</b> 1:17
32:18 34:3	window 11:24	<b>10:00</b> 22:14	<b>6:30</b> 11:23 33:5
35:11 36:24	wish19:3	<b>100</b> 29:8	<b>600</b> 24:22 29:9
37:2 38:12,22	witness 42:10,12	<b>11</b> 11:22 12:12	6th 36:9
40:3,15	Womack 1:12 4:3	32:17	7
wanted 9:5	4:7 42:6,21	<b>11th</b> 33:5	
warmer 12:25	women 6:10	<b>1301</b> 1:10	7:3025:10,11,18
wasn't8:7 9:4	wonderful 17:10	<b>14.3</b> 12:14 13:2	7000 29:9
10:11,14 11:14 20:13	17:12 28:17	<b>15</b> 29:4	<b>703</b> 33:8
way 8:24 9:3,4,7	<pre>wonderfully 17:1 word 13:10</pre>	<b>158</b> 7:11 <b>16</b> 11:21 12:3	8
10:7,14 29:15	work 5:17 16:10	<b>16</b> % 7:15	8 39:4
33:21	24:11 25:14,24	<b>16.7</b> 7:19 13:3	8 3 9 . 4
Wayne 39:20,21	27:21 30:9	13:14	9
39:23	36:10 37:21	<b>161</b> 7:17	<b>9</b> 25:19
we'll 2:22 5:1	worked 27:9		<b>9:00</b> 16:10 25:12
7:6 34:7 36:2	38:18	2	<b>9:30</b> 25:19
37:10	working 6:19	20 29:4 30:4,4	<b>91</b> 7:17
we're 2:7 4:19	18:12 25:15	<b>2016</b> 1:12 2:2	<b>911</b> 13:21
6:1,10 7:13,14	35:9,9	<b>2018</b> 42:24	
7:15,17,17	works 40:1	<b>21</b> 1:12 2:2	
8:24 10:24	world 24:3,15	<b>22</b> 42:24	
13:5 14:6 15:9	wrong 41:6	<b>252</b> 7:17	
16:2,7 17:25		<b>25th</b> 21:6,9	
18:4 25:15	X	<b>262</b> 7:15	
26:3 34:15		<b>28th</b> 33:2 39:3	
35:6 39:3	Y	<b>29th</b> 22:12	
we've12:16	<b>yeah</b> 26:2 32:9		
16:23 17:15	<b>year</b> 7:12,13,14	3	
24:5,6,6,8	7:17,18 12:15	<b>3</b> 1:17 39:4	
26:19 29:22	34:21	3.815:3	
40:24	<b>years</b> 12:13,24	3:001:11 2:3,5	
weather 12:25	14:11,12 18:10	33:3	
29:10 40:16	18:19,21,22,24	3:55 41:11	
Wednesday 39:8 week 6:1 7:19,19	25:21 30:8	<b>36</b> 16:22 17:14	
weer 0:1 /:19,19	36:6	<b>36%</b> 7:18	
	•		1

